
 
       SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE 
     FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION 

 
                                COMMISSIONERS 

Mike Sangiacomo (Sonoma)     Bob Anderson (Healdsburg) 
Todd Mendoza (Petaluma)                                                                                                     Eric Koenigshofer (Occidental)   
Dee Swanhuyser (Sebastopol)                  Jeff Owen (Alternate) 
                        

Regular Meeting 
747 Mendocino Avenue – Suite 100, Santa Rosa, CA 95401 

September 10, 2015    5:00 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 

       1.    Call to Order. 
 

2. Agenda Items to be Held or Taken Out of Order; Off-Agenda Items. 
 
      3.   General Announcements Not Requiring Deliberation or Decision. 

 
      4.    Public Comment. 

      The Brown Act requires that time be set aside for public comment on items not agendized. 
 

      5.   Correspondence/Communication. 
 
      6.     Approval of Commission Minutes.          

August 20, 2015           [Attachment 1] 
   

  7. Ad Hoc Committee Reports.   
• Annual Report/Audit Report Review (Anderson, Swanhuyser)  - no scheduled meetings               
• Investment (Swanhuyser, Owen) – no scheduled meetings 
• Review of County Services (Mendoza, Koenigshofer) –no scheduled meetings 
• Stewardship (Mendoza, Sangiacomo) – no scheduled meetings 
• Operation and Maintenance Transaction Review (Anderson, Koenigshofer) – no scheduled 

meetings 
• Matching Grant Program (Koenigshofer, Owen) – no scheduled meetings 
• Management Review Recommendations (Koenigshofer, Anderson) – no scheduled meetings 

 
       8. Initial Public Access Operation and Maintenance Policy Discussion.    [Attachment 2] 
 
       9.   Suggested Next Meeting.         October 1, 2015 
 
     10.   Adjournment. 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
        

 
  

      
 

 
 

                                

 
  

  
   
                

   
   

   
                          

  
 

  
  

                            
   

 
 
 
 

 
Fiscal Oversight Commission Agenda 09.10.15 
 



   
   
 
 

In compliance with Government Code §54954.2(a), the Sonoma County Open Space Fiscal Oversight 
Commission will, on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons 
with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132), and the Federal 
rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in another 
format or need a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Sue Jackson at 
707.565.7346 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 
Pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, a copy of all documents related to an item on this agenda 
submitted to the Fiscal Oversight Commission may be obtained from the Fiscal Oversight Commission 
office, 747 Mendocino Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95401. 

Fiscal Oversight Commission Agenda 09.10.15                                                                                                 page 2 



SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE 
   FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION 

 

COMMISSIONERS 
Mike Sangiacomo (Sonoma)                     Bob Anderson (Healdsburg)     
Todd Mendoza (Petaluma)            Eric Koenigshofer (Occidental) 
Dee Swanhuyser (Sebastopol)                           Jeff Owen (Alternate) 

 
UNAPPROVED  

Minutes for Meeting of August 20, 2015 
 

Commissioners Present:  Koenigshofer (Chair, arrived at 5:20 pm), Anderson (Vice Chair), 
Sangiacomo, Owen. 
        
Staff Present: Bill Keene, General Manager; Misti Arias, Program Manager – Acquisitions, Mary 
Dodge, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager; Stuart Martin, Land Acquisition Specialist; 
Robert Pittman, Counsel; Christine Minkel, Administrative Aide to the Commission, Sue Jackson, 
Deputy Clerk/Recorder-Fiscal Oversight Commission. 
 

Also Attending: Geoff Hornsby, State of California Certified General Real Property Appraiser                                                       
 

1.       Call to Order.       
           Commissioner Anderson called the meeting to order at 5:10 pm. 
 

2. Agenda Items to be Held or Taken Out of Order; Off Agenda Items. 
There were none. 

  

3. General Announcements Not Requiring Deliberation or Decision. 
 Mr. Keene made the following announcements: 

• The District expects to present the Stewardship Reserve Requirement calculation 
model, developed by the Center for Natural Lands Management (CNLM), to the 
Board of Directors in the next few months. He asked that Commissioners review 
the report prior to Board review. The FOC Stewardship Subcommittee will meet 
with CNLM representatives prior to either Fiscal Oversight Commission or Board of 
Directors review. 
 

Note: Commissioner Koenigshofer resumed the Chair at 5:25 pm. 
 

4. Public Comment. 
 There was none. 
 

5.       Correspondence/Communication. 
There was none. 
 

6.     Approval of Commission Minutes. 

Fiscal Oversight Commission Unapproved Minutes 08.20.15                                      Attachment 1                                  
                                                                                                                             
   



On a motion by Commissioner Anderson and second by Commissioner Sangiacomo, the 
minutes of July 9, 2015 were approved as submitted.  
 

7.     Ad Hoc Committee Reports. 
• Annual Report/Audit Report Review (Anderson, Swanhuyser) 

Commissioner Anderson reported that the committee will ask Maze and Associates to 
provide additional services to their original engagement letter dated June 8, 2015. The 
requested services are: 

o To review FY 14/15 Operations and Maintenance expenses for certain 
properties for the period April 1 to June 30, 2015; 

o To test compliance with Measure F (2006) and the most recent Board-
approved policy; 

o To issue a letter of findings and recommendations. 
     Maze and Associates will be compensated $3,400 for the additional work. 

 

Commissioner Koenigshofer requested (1) detail related to the process Maze will use 
to measure compliance and (2) that Maze meet with the Commission prior to the 
release of their findings. 
 

• Investment (Swanhuyser, Owen) – nothing to report. 
 

• Review of County Services (Mendoza, Koenigshofer) 
Commissioner Koenigshofer reported on the outcome of a meeting held August 6, 
2015; that certain expense categories are being researched to determine whether or 
not the District is receiving the most efficient and cost-effective service(s). 
 

• Stewardship (Mendoza, Sangiacomo) – nothing to report. 
 

• Operation and Maintenance Transaction Review (Anderson, Koenigshofer) – nothing 
to report. 
Note: On August 26, 2014, Commissioners Anderson and Koenigshofer determined that 
the committee task specific to transaction review would be better served by the Annual 
Report/Audit Review Committee (Anderson and Swanhuyser). Thus, the O&M 
transaction review report is addressed above. Commissioners Anderson and 
Koenigshofer will continue to assist District staff with the development of the policies 
related to defining initial public access. 
 

• Matching Grant Program (Koenigshofer, Owen) – nothing to report. 
 

• Management Review Recommendations (Koenigshofer, Anderson) – nothing to 
report. 
 

8. Closed Session. 
 The Commission adjourned to Closed Session at 5:30 pm.  
 
 
 

Fiscal Oversight Commission Unapproved Minutes 08.20.15                                      Attachment 1                                  
                                                                                                                             
   



9. Report on Closed Session. 
 The Commission reconvened to Open Session at 6:20 pm and reported the following: 
 

 Richardson-Kashia Appraisal Review           Resolution No. 2015-003 
On a motion by Commissioner Anderson and second by Commissioner Sangiacomo, the 
Commission determined that the acquisition price for the conservation easement over the 
Richardson-Kashia property does not exceed fair market value. 
 

 Ayes: ___4____   Noes: ___0____   Abstain: ___0____   Absent: ___2___  
 

10.   Suggested Next Meeting.           September 10, 2015 
 

11.   Adjournment. 
        Commissioner Koenigshofer adjourned the meeting at 6:28 pm.  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sue Jackson 
Deputy Clerk   

Fiscal Oversight Commission Unapproved Minutes 08.20.15                                      Attachment 1                                  
                                                                                                                             
   



 
 
 
DATE:  September 4, 2015 (Meeting September 10, 2015) 
   
TO:  Fiscal Oversight Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Sheri J. Emerson, Stewardship Program Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Draft Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy 

 
 

I have revised the draft policy to incorporate input from your Commission, as well as additional staff 
and County Counsel review.   
 
District staff also recently met with staff from Sonoma County Regional Parks about the draft policy.  
This feedback will be discussed at your meeting on September 10.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Fiscal Oversight Commission Meeting September 10, 2015                                           Attachment 2 



 

 
 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update  
(August 26, 2015 revision) 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DRAFT  
DISTRICT INITIAL PUBLIC ACCESS, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE POLICY 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On November 7, 2006, the voters of Sonoma County approved the Sonoma County Open Space, 
Clean Water, and Farmland Protection Measure (Measure F, included as Appendix A), extending 
the District’s sales tax to March 31, 2031.  The measure, via an Expenditure Plan, authorized the 
use of sales tax revenues towards the protection of five listed open space designations:  
 

 Community separators and greenbelts;  

 Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors;  

 Agriculturally productive lands;  

 Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors; and other areas of biotic significance, and  

 Other open space projects. 
 

The Expenditure Plan provides that the protection of these agricultural lands and open space 
“will be accomplished primarily through the purchase of development rights from willing 
sellers” and may include the purchase of “fee interests for outdoor public recreation where the 
public use would not be inconsistent with the open space designations…” 
 
The District’s Expenditure Plan also allows for funding towards “operation and maintenance of 
land” (paragraph 6):  
 

“Operation and maintenance of land includes limited funding for initial public access, 
operation and maintenance of recreational lands purchased in accordance with this 
Plan. No more than 10 percent of total revenues generated over the life of the Measure 
shall be made available for operation and maintenance purposes.”  

 
The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District (District) Board of Directors 
established a policy related to Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance (IPAOM) in 
August of 2007 through Board Resolution 07-0666 (Appendix B). This policy was updated in 
October of 2013 through Board Resolution 13-0410 (Appendix C).   Under the 2013 policy 
update, District expenditures eligible for inclusion within IPAOM include:  
 



 

 
 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update  
(August 26, 2015 revision) 
Page 2 of 5 

 Capital Improvements. Capital improvements to support initial public access on District-

protected lands intended for recreational use; and  

 

 Payments to Recreational Partners.  Payments to entities receiving fee transfer of 

District-protected recreational properties to support initial public access. This has been 

interpreted to include funding for planning and construction of improvements necessary 

for initial public access, as well as for operation and maintenance costs associated with 

initial public access; and 

 

 Recreational Lands Management Costs.  Resource management and infrastructure 

maintenance to protect the identified conservation values on District-owned lands 

intended for recreational use;  and 

 

 Interim access, Permit, and Outings Costs. Provision of interim access or permit 

programs, public outings and educational programs on District-protected recreational 

lands that are not currently open to the public;  and 

 

 Annual appropriations for Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance 

Expenditures and Reserve Fund (IPAOM Fund) contribution. 

The 2013 policy update makes clear that the IPAOM expenditures may include District staff and 

legal costs related to all of the above.  

INTENT OF 2015 POLICY UPDATE 
 
Since the passage of Measure F in 2006, the District has spent nearly 10 percent of 
collected sales tax revenues in accordance with IPAOM Board policy.  Competition for 
the IPAOM funds is anticipated to remain strong and it has become clear that further 
clarification of the existing policy is needed to ensure equitable and efficient use of 
those funds.    
 
USE OF INITIAL PUBLIC ACCESS, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE FUND 
 
Consistent with the 2013 IPAOM policy update, the Initial Public Access, Operation and 
Maintenance Fund (IPAOM Fund) will continue to be used on District-protected lands intended 
for recreational use.  All of the provisions within the 2013 IPAOM policy update will continue to 
stand.   
 
To preserve open space and ensure fiscal responsibility, the District supports a low-
impact, low-cost approach to providing recreational opportunities on District-protected 
lands slated for public access, where provided improvements and their operation are 



 

 
 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update  
(August 26, 2015 revision) 
Page 3 of 5 

consistent with the identified conservation values.  This approach is consistent with the 
District’s mission statement, which is:   

 
“The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
permanently protects the diverse agricultural, natural resource, and scenic  
open space lands of Sonoma County for future generations.” 

 
Further, this approach carries out explicit direction within the Expenditure Plan that “public use 
would not be inconsistent with the open space designations.”   
 
Limiting District funding of recreational improvements to those that are necessary to provide 
initial public access (including the cost of preliminary planning for and initial operation and 
maintenance of those improvements), reduces the impact to the environment and reduces long 
term maintenance and operational costs.  This approach also allows for prudent use of 
revenues over the life of the Measure F. 
 
The IPAOM Fund is not a source of ongoing funding.  Funding will be provided for a maximum 
of three years after the date of acquisition by the receiving entity, unless extraordinary 
circumstances can be demonstrated.  Examples of this might be a situation where there is a lack 
of legal access to a property, or where there has been a major natural disaster; either scenario 
might prevent a partner from completing improvements and opening a property to public 
access within the three year timeframe.   
 
The District will continue to treat all partners equitably, and will reimburse partners in a timely 
manner.   Entities seeking funding are expected to demonstrate that their costs reflect market 
rates and standard practices for planning, developing, operating and maintaining recreational 
lands.  Entities will be subject to a transfer or funding agreement, to the terms of a 
conservation easement to be retained by the District and to the provisions of a recreation 
covenant, if required. The District will conduct an annual review and audit of expenditures.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURE 
  
The District General Manager will recommend an annual budget for the IPAOM Fund that 
equals no more than 10 percent of the revenue collected during the previous fiscal year. 
Recreational partners and the District will be eligible for reimbursement from the IPAOM Fund 
for qualified expenses.  Projects proposed by partnering entities will be reviewed by the Fiscal 
Oversight Commission and approved by the Board of Directors prior to reimbursement. 
 
Qualifying expenditures include low-impact, low-cost activities, including minimal 
improvements that facilitate initial public access while protecting conservation values. 
Examples of minimal improvements include basic recreational amenities such as multiple-use 
natural surface trails and unpaved parking areas, fencing, gates, related signage, and portable 
or temporary restroom facilities.  Preliminary planning for, and operation and maintenance of, 



 

 
 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update  
(August 26, 2015 revision) 
Page 4 of 5 

minimal improvements are included.  Necessary regulatory approvals and access agreements 
would be included in the planning.  Universal access opportunities will be considered for 
inclusion in part of initial public access where appropriate, in relation to property constraints 
and in accordance with law.   
 
Qualifying expenditures typically do not include off-site road work or major internal road work 
(turn lanes, ingress road upgrades or realignments), major water or sewer infrastructure 
improvements, overnight accommodations (huts, hotels, yurts, cabins, tent pads), or more 
developed recreational amenities (play structures, covered picnic areas).   On occasion, there 
may be extraordinary circumstances that would justify a contribution towards improvements 
that are otherwise not included in this policy but necessary to provide initial public access.  An 
example of this might be an upgrade to a property driveway entrance that is necessary for the 
public to initially gain access the property.  These may be approved on a case by case basis by 
the Board of Directors after staff recommendation and Fiscal Oversight Commission review.  
The intent of this policy is for the majority of IPAOM funds to be used for typical qualifying 
expenditures.     
 
Reimbursements from the IPAOM Fund to the District and to other entities will be reviewed at 
the end of each fiscal year by the Fiscal Oversight Commission, in accordance with Sonoma 
County Board of Supervisors Resolution 10-0832, confirming that expenditures are consistent 
with the Expenditure Plan.  
 
The Board of Directors will retain the flexibility to re-allocate funds from the IPAOM Fund for 
other purposes eligible under Measure F as it deems appropriate.  
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Basic Recreational Amenities:  Simple features that support a passive or low intensity outdoor 
recreational experience, usually including a natural surface trail, gravel or dirt parking area, 
portable or temporary restrooms, and minimal signage. 
 
Initial Public Access: Earliest feasible and safe public access consistent with the District’s 
responsibility to protect agricultural, scenic, and biotic resources as well as all applicable legal 
requirements. Such access is limited to low-impact outdoor public recreational use, and may 
include permit programs, docent-led tours, and minimal improvements that create basic 
recreational amenities for more general open public access.  
 
Low-impact, Low-cost Approach:  Providing passive or low intensity, environmentally-sensitive 
outdoor public recreation opportunities, through construction, operation, and maintenance of 
minimal improvements that provide basic recreational amenities.  This approach allows for safe 
public access while minimizing both impacts to the natural environment and the cost of long-
term operation and maintenance.  



 

 
 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update  
(August 26, 2015 revision) 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Minimal Improvements:  Enhancement of existing features of the property such as ranch roads, 
fire roads, parking areas, trails or similar existing features, or construction of new basic 
recreational amenities.  These improvements may require some preliminary planning, and may 
be capitalized in accordance with applicable policy. 
 
Operation and Maintenance:  Property maintenance and program activities in support of initial 
public access on District-protected Recreational Land. 
 
Recreational Land. Property acquired or protected with District sales tax funds that is intended 
for public use.  Recreational lands may include lands subject to a conservation or trail easement 
held by the District, or properties owned by the District in fee. 
 
Reimbursement to Partners: Payments to a receiving entity accepting fee title or other interest 
in a recreational property purchased, in whole or in part, with District funds. These payments 
are to be made, in accordance with the Expenditure Plan, for the purpose of securing initial 
public access to the property and supporting operation and maintenance costs necessary for or 
resulting from that early access.  
 
Appendices:  

A. Measure F including District Expenditure Plan 
B. Board of Directors Resolution 07-0666 
C. Board of Directors Resolution 13-0410 
 

 



VOTER'S PAMPHLET 
MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 

(whichever is applicable to your ballot) 
Arguments in support or, or in opposition to, the proposed taws are the opinions or the authoTS. 

COUNTY OF SONOMA 
MEASUREF 

. Sonoma County Open Space, Clean Water and 

F Farmland Protection Measure. To preserve nalural 
. lands trom development; pTOlact wOl~ing farms and 

ranches; protect drinking water soU/cas; improve waler 
quality In lakes, rivers and streams; ere ale and improve parks-and 
trails; and preserve the coaslllne and beaches, shall the currenl 
quarter-cent sales tax, lunding the Sonoma County Agricultural 
PresBiva\ion & Open Space Dlslricl, be contlnued for twenly 
years. and bonds authorized to finance projecls. with requited 
independent audits and citizen oversight without increasIng 
taxes? 

COUNTY COUNSEL'S IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS OF MEASURE F 

Currently. the 8onoma County AgrlculLural PfeSfftvaUOn and Open Space Author
ity Imposes a 1/4 cent transactions and use tax on retail sales in the county. The' 
proceeds of this tax, which was first imposed in 1991,·have bean used to purchase 
properties suCh as Taylor Mountain, Montini Ranch, Tolay Regional Park, and 
Saddle Mountain. In addition, tax revenue has been used to purchase conserva· 
tion easements over thousands of agricultural and open space acres to preserve 
openspace in community separators and agriculturalpJOpertles in the community. 

The current tax will expire In 201 t The proposed measure would extend the lax an 
addilional20 years. Thetaxwould continue 10 be coileCted as it is now, In the same 
man~er as stale-Imposed sales· tax. 

The measure would also re\lise the existing Expendilure Plan, which governs how 
the funds raised by the sales 1ax can be spenl. Since this is a special purpose lax, 
monies coltoctedwm be placed In a specJal fund and can be spent only for Ihe pur
poses set oul if.! the measure and Ihe Expenditure Plan. These purposes include 
preservation of community separators and greenbelts (lands that fUnclion as open 
space to sepmate cilies and other communities); preservalion of scenic land
stapes and corridors lamas of high scenic quaUty Including natural landscapes 
·and backdrops); preservation of agriculturally productive lands {including working 
fanns and ranches}; protection of biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other 
areas of biotic significanc£} Oncluding areas of freshwater and tidal marshes, 
wetlands, wildlife habitat corridors and lands along creeks and streams critical to 
protecting fisheries and water quality}; other open space projects (such as urban 
open space and recreation projects within ornearincorporaled meas); and support 
of operation and maintenance of recrealional lands lhat were purchased in 
accordam:e with the Expenditure Plan (limited to .10 percent of Iotal revenues for 
this purpose). 
The measure requires that Ihe County Auditor prepare annual reports lor the 
Board of Supervisors staling the amolint of money collected, the amount spent 
that year, and the status of any projects funded by the tax. These reports would 
be public records. In addition, Ihe Sonoma County Open Space Authority would 
provide independenlliscal oversight over how the money raised by the tax is spent. 

The measure also authorizes the County to issue bonds or enler Into tease·pur~ 
chase agreements, to be paid offw!lh the tax revenue,lo take advantage of pur· 
chase opportunities from wilUng sellers as they become available. Any bonds 
issued would he paid back with the proceeds of the lax. 

If two-tnirds oflhe voters in the County. who vote on this measure lIole uyes,n the 
measure win pass and the special tax will be levied. 

STEVEN WOODSIDE 
County Counsel 

By: "Kathleen Larocque 
Deputy County Counsel 

COUNTY AUDITOR'S FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT - MEASURE F 

Revenues: 

This measure does not increase the current sales tax. This measure continues Ine 
currenl Open Space sales tax collected in Sonoma-County of 1/4 of one percent 
(.25%) for twenty years after March 31,2011 for open space eligible for protection' 
under the Agricultural PreselValion and Open Space 2006Expenditure Plan. Open 
space Ihat is eligible for protection, under this Plan, ihclude community separators, 
greenbelts, scenic landscape unils, scenic corrldors, agriculturally pradu'ctive 
lands, biotic habitat areas, r~arian corridors and other ar.eas 01 biotic significance, 
and otheT open space projects. 

Based on currenlsales tax collections, h.islorlcal annual growth in sales tax, and 
lhe assumplion that Ihe tax will remain in effect for twenty (20) years, the Alldl· 
tor-Controll~r estimates the .sales tax collect~d, annually, under this measure will 
be appro:<imately $17 million to $30 million. 

Proceeds from 1his sales tax shall be deposited into the Open Space Special Tax 
Account and shall he spent only to implement the projems in the 2001i Expenditure 
Plan below. The County Iwditor shan prepar6 and file, annually, with the Board of 
Supervisors reports containing amounts of runds collected and expended and Iha 
status of any project(s) required oraUlhorized to be funded. Fiscal overslghl will be 
provided by the Sonoma County Open Space Authority. 

Expenditures: 

The revenues generated by this measure are available solely foropen space eligi
ble for protec\ionset out tn the Agricultural Pres6lVatlon and Open Spacs 2006 Ex.
penditure Plan, and summarized below: 

1. Communjty Separators and greenbelts are lands that function as open space to 
separate cities and other communlUes. 

2 Scenic l~ndscape units and sctmic GOrridor5 are areas of high scenic quality in
duding natural landscapes and b~ckdrops. 

3. Agriculturally productive lands include working farms and ranches snd olher 
lands used for the production of food, fiber, and plant materials and the raising and 
malntaining of livestock and farm animals. 

4. Biotic habila1 areas, riparian corridors, and olher areas of biotic slgnmcan~ In
clude freshwater and lidal marshes, wetlands, special status species lotations, 
woodlands and lorests, wildlife habllat corridors and lands along creeks and 
streams critical to protecting fisheries and water quality. 

5. Other open space projects include urban open space and recreation projecls 
wiihln Sonoma County. 

6. Operation and maintenance or land Includes limUed funding for initial public ac
ooss, operation and maintenance of recreational lands purchased per this Plan. 
Umited \0 10% cftotal revenues. . 

Bonds: 

This measure includes Ihe authorizalion to issue limited bonds and, from lime to 
time, enter Into lease-purchase agreements with the County's Treasurer. The max· 
imum indebtedness, including issuance cost, interest, and debt structure costs . 
shall note:<ceed lhe total amount 01 proceeds from this sales tax. 

In accordance with the Election Code, tile scope of this' fiscal impact analysis has 
been limi\ed 10 the measure's eHect on rellenues and e:<penditures. It does not ad· 
dress larger counlywide fiscal issues such as the measure's effect on the overall 
County economy. 

6/ Rod Dolo 
Sonoma Cqunty Audllor-Controller-Treasurer-Ta:< Colleclor 

-Sonoma County 49-502 9455 

FOC Meeting 9.10.15 ATTACHMENT 2 continued 



VOTER'S PAMPHLET 
MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 

(whichever is applicable 10 your ballol) 
Argumenls in support of, or in opposilion 10, Ihe proposad laws are Ihe opinions of Ihe authors, 

ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF MEASURE F 

As Sonoma County grows, Measure F Is a unique opportunily to protecl our quallly 
of life now, and for future generations. Measure F 1,','111 permanently protecllands 
threatened by development and praseNe waler qualUy, rivers, streams, working 
farms and natural areas - with no increase in taxes. . 

Measure F wfli continue funding the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District, responsible fOf preserving over 6B,000 acres of Glean water 
sources, scenic vistas, wildlife habitat, working farms and vineyards, parks and 
trails since its establishment by voters in 1990. Every district purchase is subject to 
community and taxpayer oversight ..... ensuring that public funds are spent wisely 
and efficiently. Every landowner is a willing seller and eminent dcmain is prohibited. 

Measure F will protect open space, Glean wa1er, family farms and our quality of life 
by: protecting important rivers, streams, lakes and groundwater 10 preserve drink· 
ing water quality In our .communitles for ruture needs; preseNing beaches and 
coaslallands; conserving natural areas and open space, including those where 
children can be educated aboutnalure and wildlife tonservatian; preserving work
ing farms, ranches, orchards and vineyards; protecting fish and wildlife habitat; 
protecting oak woorilands, grasslands and redwood forests to improve air quality; 
helpIng create and maintain parks in and near urban areas; and protecting natlJral. 
scenic areas from growth and development. 

Remember, Meas~re F is not a tax increase - it will simply continue I1n existing 
tax. Measure f has a strict 20-year time limit, requires citizen oversight and en
sures that aU expenditures are subject to independent annual audils. 

We must atl-now'to'prolect Sonoma-County's natural areas, clean water, farms 
and wildlife. The tongerwe wait, the more expensive it will be to protect what 
Is lefl. Please join us in voting yes on Measure F. For more Information visit 
www.FriendsOiSonomaCounty.oTg 

s/ Uante B. Benedelll 
Chairman Clover~StomeUa Farms 

s1 Mary H. Hafl"!er 
Director, Sonoma land Trust 

sIBil! Cogbill 
Sheriff-Coroner 

51 Patrick W. Knkenny 
Business leader/Retired Banker 

s1 Wanda Tapia 
Chair,latino SeNice Providers 

REBUTTAL TO ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF MEASURE F 

Open Space D1strict officials trumpet their "protec\ion~ of lands. What alert tax· 
payers ought 10 ask is what would the use of Ihese lands be now, or in 20 or 40 
years had the DistrIct not acquired them? Many people would conclude Ihat most 
of the acquired lands would be used largely the same Bslhey are today. Why 
should taxpayers spend -limBed resources to protect land already protected by 
overlapping regulations thai limit the allowable uses? Many of these properties 
have no practical'alternative uses from their present use, and most are under no 
thrcatof developmenl The use of $200,000,000 of taxes for Ihese purposes over 
the past 15 years amounts to possibly Ute greatest boondoggle in Sonoma 
County history. 

Maintaining the rural character of Sonoma CountY and preventing run-on commu
nities like other areas In California is a laudable goal. The good news is we already 
have voter based urban growth boundaries in every city except Cloverdale, and the 
General Plan and existing zoning laws have appropriate controls on how all lands 
In the County can be used. 

With an the more pressing needs for local governments, let's stop wasting money 
protecting that which does not need lurther pJOtecling. 

SONOMA COUNTY TAXPAYERS' ASSOC. SONOMA COUNTY TAXPAYERS' ASSOC. 
sf Jack Atkin, President sl Fred H. Levin, Executive Director 

SONOMA coUNTY TAXPAYERS' ASSOC. SONOMACOUNTYTAXPAYERS' ASSOC. 
sl JOM E. Abercrombie, Treasurer sl Timothy J. Hannan 

ARGUMENT AGAINST MEASURE F 

The measure to renew 1he Open Space District and associated tax does not de· 
serve voters' suppon. Ovsrihe pas115 years Ihe Open Space Dislrtcl has largely 
wasted over $200 million and achieved little measurable benefits lor Sonoma 
County residents. 

Lei's be clear; there is no objection to maintaIning land foragriculturB, open space, 
green belts orfor recreation. The point is -that taxpayers don't have 10 buy the land 
Of easements on the land 10 achieve these worthy goals. Cities and the County 
already have many tools at their disposal 10 accomplish llies6 objectives. These 
10015 include 1he General Plan, -zoning laws·that specify how land with various 
zoning classificattans can be used. In addition every city In Sonoma County except 
Cloveroale has voter passed urban growth boundaries 1hat limit the ability of those 
cities to expand urban development outside Ihose boundaries. 

We ask, how does purchase of an agricuitural easement make sense for a farm 
that Is designated 'for aQricultural use in the general plan, Is zoned only for agricul- . 
ture and is far outside any city's urban growth boundary? Ooes buying forestland 
that is already designated a scenic reSOurce in toe General Plan and for which 
there Is no practical other use and no conceivable threatened development repre
sent an efficIent use of limited public resources? 

Fulure generalions deserve the right to decIde for themselves, by majority rule, the 
bes\ use of the lands in Sonoma County. Acquisition of land andlestrictive ease
ments has the undemocratic effect of allowing tOOay's citizens. to make land use 
deCisions for all future generations. 

To spend taxpayer resources an ~protectingft land that does not need protacting is 
simply a waste. With al\ the real needs of government for funds. we do not have the 
luxury of wasting any funds whHe reat needs go unmel 

SONOMA COUNT'{ TAXPAYERS' ASSOC. SONOM!\COUNlYTAXPAYERS' ASSOC. 
51 Jack Atkin, President sf Fred H. Lovin, Executive Director 

SONOMA COUNTY TAXPAYERS' ASSOC. SONOMACOUNTYTAliPAYERS' ASSOC. 
. sf John E. Abercrombie, Treasurer sl Ti!nothy J. Hannan. Vice Presiden1 

REBUTTAL TO ARGUMENT AGAINST MEASURE F 

U's unfonunate Ihal the T axpayeiS Msociation is misleading voters regarding Mea·_ 
sure F and the many benefits the Sonoma County Agrtcullural preseNaUon and 
Open Space District has brought to Sonoma County. Please review the facts for 
yourself: an independent Citizen panet (The Grand Jury of Sonoma County) recently 
reviewed the District's preselVation plan fOT crtHcal natural areas and found: '"The 
pla.n is well founded and an excellent means of selecting potential acquisitions." 

Unlike zoning, general plan updates and urban growth boundaries 1hat can be 
changed by elected officials, the Dislrict's easements "and acquisoo!1s permanen\ly . 
protect water sources, open space and farmland from poorly planned development. 
The District has. perman8nUy preseNed over 69,000 acres of clean waler sources, 
scenic vistas, wildlife habitat, wolking farms, parks and !ralls since its establlshment 
by volers in 1990 -land that olheMise might have been lost to development. More 
frQmthe Grand JUI)"s review: ~ ... lWe are) saUsfied tha\... the funds which are avan
able 10 the District are being used In an effective manner to preserve the scenIc 
beauty and the agricultural h8T\taga of Sonoma County: 

Remember, Measure F has a strict 20 year time limit, will pennanenUy protect lands 
threatened by development and preseNe water quality, rlver.:;, .streams, workIng 
farms and natural areas-with no increase in taxes. Measure F includes community 
and taxpayer oVBTSighl and independent annual audits of all expenditures to ensure 
that every dollar Is spent wisely. Please join Uf; along with business, enVironmental, 
agricu\\ural, labor and community organizations in supporting Measure F. 

sf Karen Collins, Chair sf Carol Kneis 
County Parks Commission Petaluma Chamber President 

sf Saralee McClelland Kunde 61 Peter V. Leveque, Past President 
Farmer-Grape Grower Madrone Audubon 

sl Steve Rabinowilsh 
Santa Rosa CouncilmemberlSRJC Instructor 

Sonoma County 49-503 9455 

FOC Meeting 9.10.15 ATTACHMENT 2 continued 



VOTER'S PAMPHLET 
MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 

(whichever is applicable to your ballot) 
Arguments in support of, or in opposition to, the proposed laws are the opinions of the authors. 

FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F 

THE SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE, CLEAN WATER AND 
. FARMLAND PROTECTION MEASURE 

OROiNANCE·NO. 567JROF THE COUNTY OF SONOMA. STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
EXTENDING THE IMPOStTION OF A TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE 

ADMINISTERED BYTHE STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATiON 

Secl1oo1. TITLE. This Ordinance shall be knowp as the Sonoma County Open 
Space, Claan Waler and Farmland Proleclian Measure. The County. of Sonoma, 
hereinafter shall be called ~County.M This OrdInance shall be applIcable In the 
Incorporated and unincorporated terrilolY of the Counly: 

Section 2. EFFECTIVE DATE: OPERATIONAL DATES; ADMINISTRATION. 

A.This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by a 
two-thirds majority of Ihe electors voting on the measure. 

B. INS Ordinance shall b.~comeoperative on April 1, 2011; provided, how
ever, that the Sonoma County Agricultural PreselValion & Open Space 2006 Ex
penditure Plan ("the 2006 Expeoditure Plann

), aUached hereto as Exhibit -A,n 
shall become. operative on the effeclive date of this Ordinance. . 

C. The exIsting contract between the Sonoma County Agricultural Preser
vation & Open Space District and the Sonoma County Open Space Authority shall 
remaIn In effect, subject to amendments, through March 31,2011. 

D. Prior to April 1, 2011, the District arid the County shan enler into a con
tract for Ihe'administraUon'of the 2006Expenditure Plan. That conlract-shall be
Game operaiiveon the expiration of Ihecurrent contracl bet\veen the Authority and 
the District and shall provide forthe administralionof the 2006 Expenditure Plan by 
the District and the funding of the Dislrict's annual budgets by the Cnunty from 
funds available in the Open Space Special Tax Account 

Section 3. PURPOSE. This Ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, 
among oIher purposes, and Clfects that1he prolJi.sions heTeof be interpreted in order _ 
to accomplish those purposes: 

.A. To extend the imposlUon of a relall transactions and use lax in accor· 
-dancewllh the provisIons of Part 1.6 (commencingwHh Seclion 7251) of Division 2 
of file Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 7285.5 of Pari 1.7 of DIvision 2' 
which authorizes the County to adopl1hls lax Ordinance which shan be operative if 
2./3 of the electors voting on the measure vote to approve Ihe imposition of the tax. 
at an eleclion called for that purpose. 

-B. To adopt the extenslon of a retail transactions and usa t8X Ordinance 
that incorporates provisions identical to Ihose of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the 
Slate of Caliromla insofar as lhose provisions are nol inconsistent with the require
ments and limitations contained in Par11.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxa~ 
lion Code and to authorize the Issuance of limited tax bands 10 finance the 
pur~ases of open space lands thai are consistent with this-Ordinance. 

C. To Mopt the extension of a retail transactions and use tax Ordinance. 
that imposes a lax and provides a measure therefor that can be administered and 
co1\eded by the State Board of Equalization in a manner thai adapts itself as fully 
as prac~Gable 10. Bnd req,uiresthe least possible deviation from, the eXisting statu· 
lOry Bnd adminislra~ve procedures followed by the Stale Board of Equalization in 
administering and ool1eCling the California State Sales and USB Taxes. 

D. To adopt the extension of a retail transactions and use tax Ordinance 
that can be adrninistered in a manner that will be, to the greatest degree possible, 
consistentwilh Ihe prOVision? of Part 1.6 orolvision 2 oftha Revenue and T axalion 
Code, minimize \he. cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, and altha 
same lime, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons subjecllo taxation 
under the proVisions of Ihis Ordinance. 

E. To aulhOlize lhe issuance ofbonds and Ihe undertaking of lease-purchase 
fmancing obligations to finance the acquisitions specified in Exhibit "A.r. 

Seclion4. EXPENDITURE PLAN; UMITATION OFfXPfNDITURES; fiSCAL 
OVERSIGHT. Pursuantlo the requirements of Government Code §50075.1, (1) 

the 2006 Expenditure Plan constitutes the statement of the specific purposes for 
which the ravenuegenerated by this Ordinance may be expended, (2) theexpendl
lure of the revenue generated by this Ordinance shall be restricted 10 the purposes 
staled in Exhibit -A, M {3) the revenue generated by this Ordinance shall be depos
Il,d Inlo the 'Open Space Special Tax Aceounl," and (4) the Counly Audilor shall 
prepare and file with the Board of Supervisors reports meeting the requirements of 
Government Code §50075.3. The Sonoma Counly Open Space Aulhorlly shall 
provide specified fiscal oversight as provided In an agreement between the(;ounty 
and the District 

Section 5. CONTRACT WITH STATE. Priorto the Operative Date, the .County . 
shall contract with Ihe Siale Board of Equalizatioillo perform all functions incident 
10 Ihe administration and operaUonoflhls transacilons and use lax Ordinance; pro
vided, thai if the County shall nol have contracted With the State 80ard of Equaliza
tion priorto the Operative Date, itshall nevertheless so-contract and In sucn a case 
the operative date shall be the first day of the- first calendar quarter follow1ng the. 
execution 01 such a contract 

Seclion 6. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE. For the privilege of selling tangible 
personal pjoperty al retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all relallers In the incorpo
rated and unincorporated territor)' of the County at the rate oJ one quarter-of one 
per cenl (0.25%) of the gross rece\p\s 01. any retailer from the sale of all tangible 
personal pJOperty sold at relall in said territory 011 and after the operative dale of 
this Ordinance. 

- Section 7. PLACE OF SALE. For the purposesolthis Ordinance, all retail sales 
are consummated al the place of -business of the rela~erun\ass the tangible personal 
propert~' sold is-delivered by the retalier or his agenl10 an Qut-ofMstate destination 
or to a cornman carrier for delivery to an out-of-state destination. The gross receipts 
from such sales shall include delivery charges, Whell such charges me subject to 
the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place to which delivery is made. In the 
event a retailer has no permal'lBni place of business in the State or has more than 
one place of bUSiness, the place ot places at which the re\ailsales are consum· 
mated shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and 
adopted by the State Board of Equalization. 

Secllon8. USE TAX RATE. An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, 
use or other consumption in thB Gounly of tangible personal property purchased 
from any retaUer on and after the operative date of this Ordinance for storage, use 
or other consumption in said tBrritmy al the rate of one quarter of -one percent· 
(0.25%) of the sales price of the property. The -sales price shall include delivery 
charges when such charges are subject to state sales or use tax regardless of the 
place to which delivery Is made. 

Seclion 9. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE tAW. Except as other
wise provided in this Ordinance and except insofar as thay are inconsistent with 
the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 01 the Revenue and T axalion Cnde, all of the 
provisions of Part 1 {commencing with Section 6001) nf Division 2 of the Revenue 
and T axatlon Code are hereby adopted and made a part. of this Ordinance as 
though fully set forth hereIn. . 

Section 10. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE tAW AND COLL£CTION 
OF lJSE TAXES. In adopling lne provisions of Part 1 of Division2 of the Revenue 
and T axalion Code: 

A. Wherever the Stale of California is named or referred to as the taxing 
agency, the name of this County sha\\ be subsUtuted Iherefor. However, the substj. 
tulion shan not be made when: 

1 < The word "Slate" is used as a pal1-of the title of the State·Controller, 
Slate Treasurer, Slate Board of Ganlml, State Board of Equalization, State Trea
sury, or the Constitution of the Slate of California; 

2. The result oj Iha\ substItution would requIre aclion to be taken by-or 
againsl this County or any agency, officer, OJ employee thereof rather than by or 
againsllhe State Board of Equalization, in performing the functions incident 10 the 
administralion or operation of Ulis Ordinance. 

CONT. NEXT PAGE 

Sonoma County 49-504 9455 

FOC Meeting 9.10.15 ATTACHMENT 2 continued 



VOTER'S PAMPHLET 
MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 

(whichever Is applicable 10 your ballol) 
Argumenls in support of, or in opposilion 10, Ihe proposed laws are Ihe opinions ollha aulhors, 

FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F, CONT, 

3. In those secllons, including, but not necessarily limiled to secUons 
referring Lo the exterior boundaries of the Stale of California, where the result of Ihe 
substitution would'be to: 

a. Provide an exemption from this tax wilh respect \0 certain.sales, 
slorage, use or olher consumption of tangible personal properly which would not 
olheMise be exempt from this tax while such sales, storage, use or other con
sumption remain subject to tax by the State under the provisions of Part 1 of Divi
sion 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or; 

b. Impose this tax wah respect to cerlaln sales, storage, use or 
of her oonsumplion o~ tangible personal property which would not be subject \0 tax 
by the slale under the said provision of Ihat code. 

4. In SecUons 6701, 6702 (except in the last sentence thereoO, 6711, 
6715,6737,6797 or 682801 the Re~enue and TaxaUon Code. 

B. The word ~County" shall be substituted for the word "State~ in the 
phrase "retaUerengaged in business in this Slale" in Section 6203 and in the-detin1-
tion of thaI pl'lase in Secllon 6203. 

Section 11. PERMIT NOr-REQUIRED. If a seller'S permit·has been issued to a
relailer under Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional 
transactor's permit shall not be required by this Ordinance. 

Seelion 12, EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS, 
... ~.- ..... A :rhemshall·be excluded from the measure of the tran~.act[o.ns-1ax and 

the use tax the amount of any sales la)( or us'e tax imposed by the State of 
California or by any city, city and county, or county pursuant to the: Bradley·Burns 
Uniform local Sales and Use Tax law or the amount 0\ any slale-administered 
transactions or use tax. 

B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of transactions 
tax th~ groSs receipts from: -

1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum 
products, to operators of aircraft to be used or consumed pTincipally outside the 
County in which the'sale is made and direclly and exclusively in the use of such air
craft as common taTIims of persons or property under the authority of the laws of 
this State, Ihe United Slates. or any foreign governmenl. 

2. Sales of properlylo be used outside the County Which is shippod toa 
poinl outside the County, pursuant to Ihe contract of sale, by delivery \0 such point 
by the relaileror his agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a 
consignee al such point Forthe purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a poinlout
side the County shall be satisfied: 

a. With respect to vehicles (otherlhan commercialvehicle-s) subject 
to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Sectio(4000) of Division 3 
of Ille Vehicle Code, aircrafllicensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Pub
lic Ulili\ies Code, and undocumented vessels registered under Dtvision 3.5 (com
mem:ing with Section 9840)of Ihe Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-County 
address and by a declaranon under penally of perjury, signed by the buyer, stating 
Ihat such address is, in fact, his or her principal place of residence; anu 

b. Wilh respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of 
business out-of-Counly and declaralion under penalty of perjury, s~ned by the 

_ buyer, that the vehicle will be operated from that address. 

3. The sale 01 tangible personal property if the seUer is obligated 10 fur
nish the properly fora fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the op
emlive date of this Ordinance. 

4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of 
such property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the 
property for an amount fixed by the lease prioc to the operative date of this_Ordi
nance. 

s. For the purposes of subparagraphs {3} and (4) of this section, the 
sale or lease of tangible personal properly shall be deemed not to-be obligated pur-

suan! to a contract or leasa for any period of time for Which any party totna contracl 
or lease has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice, 
whether or not such right is exercised. 

C. There are exempted from the us.e tax imposed by this Ordinance, the 
slorage, use or other consumption In this County of tangible personal property: 

-1. The gross receipts from the sale of WhIch have been subject to a 
transactions tax under any stata-administered transactions ~nd use tax Ordi~ 
nance. 

2. Other-than fuel OJ petroleum products purchased by operatOTsof air
craft and used or consumed by such operators direc\~ and exclusIvely In the use of 
such aircraft. as common carriers of persons or prqperty for hire or compensation 
under a certificate of public convenience and necessity Issued pursuanttothe laws 
of thlsS!ate, the United States, orany foreign govemmenL This exemption is in ad
dition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 and 6366.1.of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code of the State of California. 

3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price 
pursuant to a contract enter-ed Into prior to the operalive date of this Ordinance. 

4. If tho possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the 
tangible personal property arises under a lease which is a oontinuing purchase of 
'such property for any period of lime for Which the lessee Is obligated to lease the 
property for an amount fl:<ed by a lease prior to the operalive dale of this 
Ordinance. 

5. For Ille purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, stor
age, use, or other consumption, or·possesSion 6f, or exercIse of any right or power 
over, tanQible personal property shall be deemed not to be obngaled pursuant to a 
contract or lease for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease 
has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether 
or nol such right Is exerc!sad. 

6. Except as provided in subparagrapn (7), a retailer engage(\ In busJ
. ness in the County shall not be rsquired to collect use lax from Ihe purchaser of 
tangible personal property, unless the retailershlpsordellvers the property into the 
Counlyor participates within the County in making th·e sale of the property, includ
ing, but noilimlted to, sol'iciliflg or receiving the order, either dlrectly or Indirectly, at 
a place of business of the retaner in the County or through any representatIve, 
agent. canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the County under the authority 
9f·the Tetaller. 

7, "A retailer engaged in business In the County" -shall also include any 
retailer of .any of Ihe follOWing: vehicles subjoct to regislration pursuant to Chaple[ 
1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the VehiCle Code, aircraft li
censed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Coda, or undocu
menteo vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commenc!ng with Section 9840) of 
the Vehicle Code. Thai retailer shall be required to coiled use tax from any pur
chaser who registeTs OJ licenses the vehIcle, vessel, or aircraft at an address in the 
County. 

D. Any person subject to use tax under this Ordinance may creditagainst 
that tax any transactiorn; tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid -to a 
County imposing, or retailer liable for a Iransactions tax pllrsuantlo Pari 1.6 of Divi
sion 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code with respect to the sale IDthe pernDn of 
Ihe property the slorage, use or other consumption ofwh\Ch is subject to the use 
tax. 

Section 13. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent tolhe effeotive dale . 
of this Ordinance to Par1.1 of Division 2 of the Revenue andTaxalion Code relaling 
to sales and use taxes and which are not inconsistent with Part 1_6 and Part 1.7 of 
Division 2 of Ihe Revenue and Taxation Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and 
Part 1.7 01 Division 2 of the Revenue ar.d Taxation Code, -shaU 8utomatkally be
come a part afthis Ordinance, provided however, thai no such amef\dment shall 
·operate so as \0 affecllhe rate of tax imposed by this Ordinance. 

CONT. NEXT PAGE 

Sonoma county 49-505 9455 

FOC Meeting 9.10.15 ATTACHMENT 2 continued 



, VOTER'S PAMPHLET 
MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 

(whichever Is applicable to your ballot) 
Arguments in support of, or in opposilion to, the proposed laws are the opinions of the aufhors, 

FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F, CONT, 
Section 14. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN, No injuncfion orwril of 

mandate or olher lega! or equitable process shall Issue in any suit, action or pro
ceeding in any court against the State or the County, or againsl any officer of Ihe 
Siale or the County, to prevent or enjoin the collecUon under this Ordinance, or 
Pari 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of any tax or any amount 
of tax required to be collecled.· 

Seclio" 15, AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE .LlMITED TAX BONDS AND 
bEASE.PURCHASE FINANCING AUTHORITY, Pursu,"t 10 GovefAment Code 
§§55800 et seq. the County is authorized 10 issue limited tax bonds payable from 
the tax Imposed by this Ordinance. The County maYI from lime 10 lime, enter in\o 
lease-purchase agreements with the County's Treasurer and the Districl for Ihe 
purpose of assIsting in the purchase of properuos anticipated by Exhibit kA." 

SecUon 16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision otthis Ordinance orthe applica
tion thereof 10 any person or circ!.lmstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Or· 
dlnance and the applicalion of s'uch provision (0 olher persons Of circumstances 
shall not be affected Ihereby. , 

Section 17. EFFECTIVE DATE. 111is Ordinance relates to the levying and col· 
lecUng of a Cciuntytransactions and use lax and shall take effect immedialely upon 
approval or the electorate. 

Section 18. TERMINATION DATE. The authority 10 levy the lax imposed by 
this Ordinance shall expIre on March 31, 2031. 

~ASSED-ANDADOrTED .. lly_lh"Board of S"~,JVi,o",.o.1 the County of 
Sonoma, Stale of California, on July 18, 2006, by the following vole: -

SUPERVISORS: 

Brown:_ Kerns: __ Smith:_ ReiUy:_ Kelley:_ 

Ayes:....Q.... NoeS". __ Abstain:_ Absent:_ 

Sonoma County 

SO ORDERED, 

By: ,/ Paul L Kelley 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
County of Sonoma, State of CalifornIa 

ATTEST: 

By: 51 Eeve T. Lewis 
COunty Clerk and E,-officlo Clerk of the 
Board of Supervisors of said County 

FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F, CONT, 

EXHIBIT A 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE 2006 EXPENDITURE PLAN 

The purpose of this eJ(pandi\urs" plan is 10 implement the Sonoma County 
General Plan and the general plans of the County's incorpomted cities by 
preserving agricultural land USB and open space. This purpose will be accomplished 
primarily through the purchase of development rights from willing sellers in areas of 
the County which are designated in the County and cities' General Plan open 
space elements and may include the purchase of fee "interests for outdoor public 
recreation where the public use W<Juld not be Inconsistent with the open space 
designalions listed below. 

The open space designalions eligible-for protection under this expenditure 
plan include community separators, greenbells, scenic landscape units. sCenic· 
corridors, agriculturally productive lands, biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors 
and other areas of biotic significance, and other open space projects. 

1.· Community separators ·and greenbelts are lands thai function as 
open space to sepa~ale cities and other communities and praiee] city and commu
nity ldentity by providing visual relief from continuous urbanization. These lands 
are ffsquenlly sublect to development pressures, end therefore, have been identi
fied as priority siles for acquisition 10 prevent urban spTawl; to retain 1he rural and 
open character of the county and to preselVe agricultural uses. 

.2. Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors are areas of high scenic 
quality inqluding natural landscapes -and backdrops that provide visual relief from 
urban densiti~s and maintain the open nature of the County. 

3. Agriculturally productive lands include working frums and ranchas 
and other lands used for the production of food, fiber, and plant materials and the 
raiSing and maintaining of live-stock and farm animals. 

4. Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors. and other areas of biotic sig-
nificance include Jreshwater and t"ldal marshes, wetlands, special status species 
locations, woodlands and foresls, wildUfe habilatoorridors and lands along creeks 
and streams critical to protecling fisherles and water quality. These sensitive natu
ral areas require proleclion. restoration, ano resource management, and include . 
the Petaluma River, Laguna de Santa Rosa, Russian River, Sonoma Creek and· 
San Pablo Baylands. 

5. Other open space projects include. but are not limited-to, urban-open 
space and recreation projeC1s within and near Incorporated areas and other urban
Ized-areas of Sonoma County. Funds for these projects shall be available to cities, 
tne County and other entities through a matching grant program, with preference 
gIven to acquisition and deve!opmenl projects that llnk communities: Examples of 
these pJOjects include creek restoration -and enhancement, such as along the 
Petaluma River, Santa. Rosa Creek, and Laguna de Santa Rosa, trails, athletic 
fields, and urban greenspac.e. 

6. Operation and maintenance of land Includes limRed funding for Inmal 
public access, operalion and maintenance of recre-ationallands purchased In ac
cordance with this Plan. No· more-than 10 p.ercent of totalrevenues generated over 
the life of the Measure shall be made available for operation and mainlenance-pur
poses. 

49-506 9455 

FOC Meeting 9.10.15 ATTACHMENT 2 continued 

cminkel
Highlight

cminkel
Highlight

cminkel
Highlight

cminkel
Highlight

cminkel
Highlight

cminkel
Highlight











SEE  BELOW FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES OF OCTOBER 15, 2013 WHICH 
INCLUDE  FINAL ACTION OTHER THAN RECOMMENDED

TUESDAY OCTOBER 15, 2013
ACTION SUMMARY
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
SONOMA COUNTY
575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 102A

26. Hold a study session on lands acquired for recreation including: (1) Fiscal
Overview; (2) Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy, (3)
Accounting Review, and (4) Fee Lands Strategy; and adopt a Resolution approving
an update to the District's 2007 Initial Public Access, Operations and Maintenance
Policy.
2:24P.M.

Present: Christine Williams, Administrative Analyst II, County Administrator's
Office; Bill Keene, General Manager, Agricultural Preservation and Open Space
District; Sheri Emerson, Program Manager, Agricultural Preservation and Open
Space District; and David Sundstrom, Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

Speakers:

Ken Wells  Dennis Rosatti    
Caitlin Cornwall Jeff Owen
Craig Anderson Liza Prunuske
Laurie Gallian David Bannister
Ted Eliot Dee Swanhuyser
Ralph Benson  Eric Koenigshofer

Bob Anderson
Board Action: Adopt a resolution updating the district's initial public access, and
operations and maintenance policy to include (I) costs of capital improvements, (2)
limited initial payments to recreational land transfer rec1p1ents, (3) costs for
recreational property management, and ( 4) costs to provide interim access, permit,
and public outings and education programs, and (5) continued annual
appropriations for initial public access and operation and maintenance expenditures
and District Operation and Maintenance Reserve Fund contribution.

UNANIMOUS VOTE

Approved by Resolution No. 13-0410
Board Action: Approve the General Manager's recommendation that the 
Carrington, Occidental, and East Slope Sonoma Mountain properties owned by the 
District be moved to Tier 1 in the Fee Lands Strategy, with the designated recipient 
as Sonoma County Regional Parks, subject to action by the Sonoma County Board 
of Supervisors. Each property transfer transaction would be brought to the District 
Advisory Committee and Fiscal Oversight Commission for review, and then to the 
District Board of Directors for approval at a later date.

UNANIMOUS VOTE

SEE BOARD ACTION#26 [10-15-13] FOR THE BACKGROUND INFORMATION


	AGENDA 09-10-2015
	SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
	FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION
	SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
	FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

	FOC Unapproved Minutes 08.20.15
	SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE

	IPAOM memo 091015 FOC
	SUBJECT: Draft Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy
	I have revised the draft policy to incorporate input from your Commission, as well as additional staff and County Counsel review.
	District staff also recently met with staff from Sonoma County Regional Parks about the draft policy.  This feedback will be discussed at your meeting on September 10.

	082715 IPAOM policy draft
	Full Text of Measure F Nov 2006 with Expenditure Plan Highlight
	Board Reso 07-0666
	13-0410
	Blank Page




